RECEIVED
MINUTES TOWN CLERK

TOWN OF BELMONT
LIGHT BOARD ADVISORY COMMITTEE BELMONT, MA
Remote Meeting via Zoom

Tuesday, February 15, 2022 DATE:  April 13, 2022
7:30 A.M. TIME:  8:08 AM

CALL TO ORDER. Chair Travis Franck called a meeting of the Light Board Advisory Committee (LBAC) to
order at 7:33am.

Present for LBAC was Chair Franck, Vice Chair Michael Macrae, Members Jonathan Abe, David Beavers,
Steve Klionsky, Robert Forrester and Alexandra van Geel.

Present for Belmont Light was General Manager Craig Spinale, Assistant General Manager Sam Osmancevic,
Communications Coordinator Aidan Leary, Energy Resources Manager Becca Keane, and Finance Manager
Maria Makar-Limanov.

Others: Dave Cavanaugh, Energy New England (ENE)
DISCUSSION ON NEW ENGLAND POWER POOL (NEPOOL) WITH ENERGY NEW ENGLAND (ENE)

Mr. Spinale introduced Dave Cavanaugh, Senior Vice President of Regulatory, who represents Belmont Light
at NEPOOL.

Order 2222: Mr. Cavanaugh detailed the history and goals of FERC Order 2222, the Key Compliance
Directives, and the 1ISO Stakeholder Process.

He explained that Order 2222 is a FERC order that is designed to remove barriers of participation for
Distributed Energy Resource Aggregations (DERAS) in ISO/RTO wholesale markets.

Mr. Cavanaugh discussed the ISO-New England process. He then reviewed the NEPOOL Stakeholder
Process.

He explained that at the January 6 meeting on the NEPOOL Participants Committee, the majority did not
support the Advanced Energy Economy (AEE) amendments. Mr. Cavanaugh explained that NEPOOL had
other issues that did not go through the process and how the organization handled that.

The ISO-NE proposal received broad support across all the sectors with a 71% vote of support. He explained
why certain members may not have supported the amendments.

Mr. Macrae asked who are in the Stakeholder Sectors. Mr. Cavanaugh said there are 6 sectors: Generators,
Transmission (Investor-Owned Utilities), Suppliers, Publicly Owned Entities (Municipal Systems & Co-ops),
Alternative Resources (solar & wind developers, etc.), End-Users (NGQO’s, Environmental Defense Fund, Mass
AG, consumer councils, etc.). There are about 520 members in these 6 groups.

Mr. Franck asked if each sector has an equal vote. Mr. Cavanaugh said yes, with each sector having up to
16.7% contribution to a vote. Depending on members in a sector vote, the percent of support will vary.

Mr. Macrae asked how many in the Alternative Resources sector that voted in favor were not representing
demand response providers, and what it was that the “target audience” of Order 2222 expressed frustration
around ISO’s proposal. Mr. Cavanaugh explained some of the reasons the various Sectors voted the way they
did, including business goals, compliance, coordination issues, meter reading timing, etc. There was a
discussion of how this will impact Belmont Light.

Mr. Macrae said he would like to have a better understanding of why Belmont Light supported ISO’s proposals
rather than abstaining, given the issues with the proposals especially for the DERA community. Mr.
Cavanaugh explained that the ISO proposal met compliance requirements, which is what they looked at.

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, February 15, 2022 Page 1



Belmont Light could have abstained although they would have been the only one in the Public Power Sector to
do so.

Mr. Macrae asked what would be different if Belmont Light opened up to allow competition of providers versus
remaining an exclusive territory and were they leaving something on the table by not participating. Mr.
Cavanaugh said Belmont Light has to look at the value of participation versus the cost.

Minimum Offer Price Rule (MOPR): Mr. Cavanaugh reviewed the history and goals of the MOPR and
explained that it forces new entries to justify their cost basis which helps the market stay competitive and
reliable. It was designed to prevent load interests from buying and building new resources and bringing them in
at an uncompetitive price which could “tank” the overall market and cause unreliability. He gave examples of
how this might happen.

He then explained the problems the MOPR has created, especially preventing state sponsored resources such
as wind, storage, and solar from clearing in the Forward Capacity Auctions (FCAs) because of their entry price.

There have been attempts to work around this problem, but MOPR was designed to sustain market price and
competitive entry and exit.

Mr. Cavanaugh said FERC wanted modifications to the MOPR and there were two proposals to do this — one
by ISO and one by Vistra, which he reviewed and compared.

Mr. Beavers asked what qualified as “state sponsored”. Mr. Cavanaugh said a hew renewable project where
there had to be a regulated rate or charge that was backing the project and meets the renewable definition.
There was a discussion of this definition and how it impacts Belmont Light.

The two proposals were voted on at the January NEPOOL Markets Committee (MC). ISO signaled that they
were not opposed to the transition period and had developed their own.

e The ISO proposal intended to:
o Facilitate State sponsored resource entry
o Assure market pricing models reflect the impact of MOPR modification
o Assure merchant investment will still occur

o NEPOOL Participant Committee and Vistra proposed a 2-year Transition Period to allow needed additions
to market changes to be developed. They reached out to States, POE, and others but failed to reach
Transmission Owners and some others.

Mr. Cavanaugh described the voting process.

The MC vote was 74% in favor of the ISO proposal and 24% in favor of the Vistra proposal (2-year transition),
and ENE abstained.

Because of the changes, the 2-year transition period passed 69.66%, with support across all sectors. All ENE
clients supported the transition period except Belmont Light. The rest of Public Power abstained.

Mr. Cavanaugh finished by saying this would be filed with FERC by the end of February, and that there would
be a lot of public comment because the process was not clean and there are questions about what the
reliability risks are that ISO was concerned about.

FINANCIALS: 2022 Belmont Light Budget

Mr. Klionsky asked why this was being discussed now instead of at the beginning of the year. Mr. Spinale said
it was because of changes in the cost of energy in January that caused Belmont Light to take a step back and
reevaluate. There was a discussion of the timing of the budget presentation.

Ms. Makar-Limanov reviewed the process she followed and some of the highlights of the budget:

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, February 15, 2022 Page 2



e The difference in early versus late January projections of 5% which is significant.
e That the 2022 budget includes over $700,000 of PCA collections.

¢ Increased Purchase Power costs (mostly due to Spot Market purchases).

e Operation costs are fairly flat, but inflation is impacting it.

Overall, the Operating Income is just under $1 million, which Ms. Makar-Limanov thinks indicates a need for a
rate increase.

The bottom line is a negative rate of return, which also indicates the need for a rate increase. She referenced
the details in the Memorandum which she provided.

Mr. Macrae asked if Belmont Light could float a deficit for a couple of years without increasing rates, because
of the increased costs of energy futures. Mr. Spinale said they did this last year and referenced the
recommendation of the Cost-of-Service rate increase recommendations and what Belmont Light did as a
result. He explained that the explosive cost increase of power supply has accelerated the discussion of rate
increases. There should be a dip next year, but the increase will come back the year after. He said they have a
vendor to do a new Cost of Service study.

Mr. Forrester asked what the hedge percentage will be over the next few years. Mr. Spinale said this coming
year, Belmont Light is at 79%. Ms. Keane detailed the hedging plan.

Mr. Klionsky asked why the sales forecast is down for 2022. Ms. Keane said it is a 5-year average and they
weighed 2022 slightly because of the pandemic. He asked if any analysis was done to see what would happen
if 2022 sales were as high as 2020. Ms. Makar-Limanov said they had not, but she thought it would not make a
lot of difference.

Mr. Klionsky asked about the Contributions & Transfers amount. Ms. Makar-Limanov said it is the PILOT
payment and principal.

Mr. Klionsky said he hopes the results of the new Cost of Service study will give Belmont Light a better idea of
how rates should be designed for different classes of customers. There was a discussion of the timing of the
new study. Mr. Klionsky offered to talk to Belmont Light staff on what his thinking is on what the new Cost of
Service study should include, in addition to rate increase information.

Mr. Macrae asked if TOU will be included in the new Cost of Service study, which Mr. Spinale confirmed.

Mr. Franck asked for details about the difference between the 2021 and 2022 operations long term cost
averages, pointing out that the total is about $3 million, with $1 million of that being for operations. Ms. Makar-
Limanov said it is a combination of items like operation & maintenance, payroll, benefit payments, depreciation,
insurance, overall inflation, etc. She highlighted some of the details of these cost changes and the scope of
their impacts on the budget.

Mr. Forrester asked if Mr. Spinale was concerned that the money available after the PILOT payment is
negative and wondered if there should be some mitigation through the Rate Stabilization Fund (RSF) so
Belmont Light was breaking even after the PILOT. Mr. Spinale said if this was a one-time issue, he would
consider a transfer from the RSF. But all the data suggests that this will be a sustained revenue shortfall which
needs to be solved through rate adjustments. He also explained that the goal is to have a 3-month operating
buffer with the RSF, but it is only at about 2 months right now.

Mr. Forrester asked for comments from Mr. Spinale on:
o Why customer uncollected revenues in 2021 were negative and positive in 2022.

e Customer accounts percentage for 2022 as a percent of revenue is a high compared to the last 17
years.

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, February 15, 2022 Page 3



e The high level of the G&A .

Ms. Makar-Limanov explained that uncollectables had an over 90 days balance of about $700,000 at the end
of 2020. This was reduced to $350,000 and then down to the level seen between 2015-2018. Belmont Light’s
internal policy said they must have an allowance of 75% of the total overdue account. She reduced the
expense to reduce the allowance for the lower amount. Mr. Forrester said as a percent of revenue it is still
historically high, which Ms. Makar-Limanov agreed with and explained how this was being addressed. Mr.
Spinale reviewed Belmont Light’s activities to lower the outstanding account level.

Mr. Spinale said they are looking at modifications on their personnel to lower the G&A.

Mr. Klionsky asked if the budget provides for system upgrades, which Mr. Spinale confirmed.

Mr. Klionsky asked if the streetlight conversion would be completed this year, which Mr. Spinale confirmed.
GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT

Update on Chenery Solar Project: Mr. Osmancevic reported that the system started generating last
Wednesday. Unfortunately, it stopped generating soon afterwards so they are working on that. Also, the
interior display has to be connected. There will be a training session, so stakeholders know how to monitor the
system.

High School Solar Installation: Mr. Spinale reported that there had been community conversations about
whether Belmont Light would be involved in this project. He said the Town continues to be committed to
building solar on the high school. Belmont Light would be happy to become involved if need be to keep the
project moving, but right now the Town is not asking for the help.

Mr. Abe said it may come up in the future whether Belmont Light will extend the current net metering policy to
include the High School. The previous General Manager said this was something that Belmont Light would
consider and that he supported. Mr. Franck asked what the financial models for the high school assume for net
metering. Mr. Abe said they assume that the current policy would apply to the high school (getting $.11/kwh).

Ms. Keane said the current tariff allows for a rate up to 1.5mw which was updated to allow for high school,
which will generate around 1.3mw.

Mr. Klionsky said in his view because the Town voted for the high school to have solar panels, it should be the
Town’s responsibility to do it. Belmont Light can be supportive but should not do anything that the Town should
do on its own. Mr. Franck agreed with this statement.

Resident Brian ller said it is still being discussed in Town committees about the possibility of Belmont Light
coming in to “save the day” so they may hear about this issue again.

Recent outages: Mr. Spinale explained the reason for the two recent outages and how they were resolved.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: To discuss trade secrets or confidential, competitively sensitive, or other proprietary
information.

Motion: Mr. Macrae moved to enter Executive Session to discuss trade secrets or confidential,
competitively sensitive or other proprietary information. Ms. van Geel seconded, and the motion passed
unanimously.

The Board moved to executive session at 9:31am.

Motion: Mr. Franck moved to come out of Executive Session. Mr. Beavers seconded, and the motion
passed unanimously.

The Board returned to open session at 9:53am.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, February 15, 2022 Page 4



Motion: Mr. Franck moved to approve the minutes of January 12, 2022, and Mr. Beavers seconded. The

motion passed by rollcall vote with Mr. Forrester abstaining.
FUTURE MEETINGS
Wednesday, March 15, 2022 at 7:30am.

ADJOURNMENT

Motion: Mr. Franck moved to adjourn the meeting, Mr. Macrae seconded, and the motion passed
unanimously by rollcall vote. The meeting was adjourned at 9:57am.

Respectfully submitted by,
Susan Peghiny

Minutes of the Light Board Advisory Committee, February 15, 2022

Page 5



